

DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS
**Title 16. CALIFORNIA ARCHITECTS BOARD,
LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTS TECHNICAL COMMITTEE**

PROPOSED REGULATORY LANGUAGE
Abandonment of Application §2611
Retention of Candidate Files §2611.5
Application for Licensure Following Examination §2616

Legend:	Added text is indicated with an <u>underline</u> .
	Omitted text is indicated by (* * * *)
	Deleted text is indicated by strikeout .

Amend Section 2611 of Article 1 of Division 26 of Title 16 of the California Code of Regulations

Section 2611. Abandonment of Application

- (a) An applicant whose license application for licensure is incomplete, or for which additional information is requested, shall be deemed to have abandoned their application if ~~he or she does~~ they have not submitted all required documents, data, ~~and information~~, and license fees, and complied with applicable criminal history record check requirements, ~~within by the date that is one year from~~ after the date of their notification letter notifying the applicant that their application is incomplete or requesting additional information.
- (b) (1) An applicant whose eligibility application for the Landscape Architect Registration Examination or the California Supplemental Examination is incomplete shall be deemed to have abandoned their application if they have not submitted all required documents, data, information, and required fees by the date that is one year after the date of their incomplete application notification.
- (b)(2) An applicant whose eligibility application for the Landscape Architect Registration Examination (LARE) or the California Supplemental Examination (CSE) has been accepted shall be deemed to have abandoned their application if: ~~he or she does not take the California Supplemental Examination within three years from the date an eligibility letter was issued.~~
- (A) For the LARE, they have not taken a section of the examination within five years from the date their eligibility letter was issued, or five years have passed since the last date on which the applicant took a section of the examination, whichever is later.

(B) For the CSE, they have not taken the examination within three years from the date their eligibility letter was issued, or five years have passed since the last date on which the applicant took the examination, whichever is later.

- (c) Any application submitted ~~after~~subsequent to the abandonment of a former application shall be treated as a new application and shall include all required information and accompanying materials that would be submitted by a first-time applicant, regardless of whether the information or materials were previously included in their former application. An abandoned application shall be retained in the candidate file, as defined in Section 2611.5, until the candidate file is purged pursuant to that section.

Note: Authority cited: Section 5630, Business and Professions Code.

Reference: Section 5650, Business and Professions Code.

Adopt section 2611.5 of Article 1 of Division 26 of Title 16 of the California Code of Regulations as follows:

Section 2611.5. Retention of Candidate Files

(a) For purposes of the regulations contained in this division, the following terms have the following meanings:

(1) "Candidate file" means the file maintained by the Board relating to a candidate's eligibility for examinations or licensure and previous examinations taken by that candidate. References in section 2620(d)(2) to "applications" and "records" shall be deemed references to a candidate file.

(2) "Examination" means an examination necessary for licensure.

(3) "Inactive" means that a candidate, during the period of time specified, has not:

(A) Submitted an eligibility application for an examination. For purposes of this subparagraph, "submitted" means that the Board has received the application.

(B) Responded in writing to an issued or mailed notice from the Board that their eligibility application is incomplete or a request from the Board for additional information. For purposes of this subparagraph, "responded" means that the Board has received the candidate's response.

(C) Taken an examination. For purposes of this subparagraph, "taken an examination" means that the Board has received the candidate's examination results.

(D) Applied for a license or requested the Board retain their candidate file for an additional time. For purposes of this subparagraph, "requested" means that the Board has received the candidate's request.

(b) The Board shall retain candidate files on the following schedule:

(1) If a candidate still needs to pass an examination necessary for licensure, the Board shall not purge a candidate file until (A) the file has been inactive for the previous five years, (B) the Board has mailed the candidate, at the candidate's last address known to the Board, notice of its intention to purge their file, and (C) the Board has waited at least six weeks after mailing to receive a request to retain the file for an additional time. Except as provided in subsection (c), the Board shall purge an inactive candidate file if all of the preceding conditions are met.

(2) If a candidate has passed both examinations necessary for licensure, the Board shall not purge a candidate file until:

(A) The date after which the Board would be prohibited from issuing a license to the candidate pursuant to Section 2616(b).

(B) The date on which the candidate is issued a license. The Board shall re-designate the candidate file as a license file after that date.

(c) (1) Notwithstanding subsection (b), the Board shall retain a candidate's examination scores.

(2) This section is subject to Section 12275 of the Government Code.

Note: Authority cited: Section 5630, Business and Professions Code.

Reference: Section 12275, Government Code, and Section 5650, Business and Professions Code.

Amend section 2616 of Article 1 of Division 26 of Title 16 of the California Code of Regulations as follows:

Section 2616. Application for Licensure Following Examination.

- (a) A candidate, having passed all sections of the Landscape Architect Registration Examination and the California Supplemental Examination necessary for licensure, shall apply for a landscape architects license within five years after the date of ~~mailing of~~ on which the candidate is provided examination results indicating the candidate passed the final examination necessary for licensure.
- (b) A candidate who fails to apply for a license in accordance with subsection (a), or whose most recent application as of the last day of the period specified in that subsection is abandoned, withdrawn, or denied, shall not be issued a license unless the candidate reapplies for a license and meets the following requirements:
- (1) No fact, circumstance, or condition exists which would justify denial under ~~Business and Professions Code~~ Section 480 of the Code,
 - (2) The candidate pays all ~~of the~~ fees which would be required of the candidate if the candidate were ~~then~~ applying for the license for the first time, and
 - (3) The candidate takes and passes the examination(s) ~~which would be required of~~ all candidates applying for the first time or is subject to waiver of the examination pursuant to ~~Business and Professions Code~~ Section 5651(b) of the Code.

Note: Authority cited: Section 5630, Business and Professions Code. Reference: Sections 5650, 5651 and 5652, Business and Professions Code.